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5. Functions or Use                                                                      

Historic Functions 
(Enter categories from instructions) 

 Current Functions 
(Enter categories from instructions) 

Exploration/Settlement  Recreation & Culture = Park 

Transportation = water related  Landscape = Park 

Domestic = Village Site & Camp  Education = Research (Kiosk with history 

presented; pre-historic & European 

settlement) 

   

   

   

   

   
   
6. Description 

Architectural Classification 
(Enter categories from instructions) 

 Materials 
(Enter categories from instructions) 

  foundation  

  walls  

    

  roof  

  other  

    
 
Narrative Description  
(Describe the historic and current condition of the property.)       

Summary Paragraph 

The Parkersville site/Parker’s Landing Historical Park is located off State Route 14 on the Columbia River in Washougal, 

Washington.  It is a 3.88-acre public park owned by the Port of Camas-Washougal.  The site commemorates the Chinook-

speaking Native Americans of the area and the settlement established by homesteader David C. Parker and later 

stewarded by three generations of the Van Vleet family.  The site was added to National Register of Historic Places and 

the Washington State Heritage Register in 1976.  Over the years, the port has enhanced or added recreational and 

educational elements such as pathways, benches, picnic tables, a rose arbor, two plazas, an old silo base, a kiosk that 

hosts interpretive panels, and two veterans memorials in an area near the marina.  A committee of the Port of Camas 

Washougal, the Parkersville National Historic Site Advisory Committee (PNHSAC) (formerly the Parker’s Landing Park 

Advisory Committee) provides input toward management of the site.  

 

 

 

 



Clark County Heritage Register Nomination Form CLARK COUNTY , WA Page 3 of 28 
   

Site Map and Legal Description: 

 

 

The site is described as follows:  Beginning at a point on the dividing line between the east and west halves of the David 

C. Parker Donation Land Claim which marks the initial point of the survey of Parkersville Subdivision in Section Twelve 

(12), Township One North, Range Three (3) east of the Willamette Meridian, running thence north 7* 32’ east along said 

division line 461 feet, more or less, to the south boundary of the frontage road lying adjacent to and parallel with 

permanent State Highway No. 14; thence northeasterly along the south boundary of said frontage road to point of 

intersection with the east boundary of Lot Five (5), Block Twelve (12), Parkersville; thence south 0* 47’ west 250 feet to 

the southwest corner of Lot Six (6), Block Thirteen (13), Parkersville; thence south 89* 43’ west to the point of 
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beginning.  ALSO Lots One (1), Two (2), Three (3), Four (4), Seven (7), Eight (8), Nine (9) and Ten (10) Block Fourteen (14), 

and all of Block Fifteen (15), Parkersville, according to the plat thereof established by Clark County Superior Court Case 

No. 12393, recorded in Volume “A” of plats, page 7, records of Clark County, Washington.  Total acreage is 3.88.1 

Park Identification 

Over the years, the Parker’s Landing Park Advisory Committee (now the Parkersville National Historic Site Advisory 

Committee) has described three distinct sections of the park.  Section A is a 0.92-acre parcel at the north end and is used 

for parking.  Section B consists of 1.41 acres, including the Parker’s Landing Historical Park sign, a dedication monument, 

Chinook Plaza, a Kiosk with 8 historical panels, an old silo base, the Van Vleet plaza home site, a rose arbor, and walnut 

and apple trees.  Section C is a 1.55 partially filled area, a mostly open space with benches, picnic tables, and viewing 

deck.  In addition, Section C houses two veteran memorials. 

Section A – This 0.92 acre parcel at the north end of the site is used as a parking area and contains gravel roadways and 

grass strips.  It is bordered on the north with the Highway 14 frontage road.  See photo from Clark County GIS below left. 

         

Section B – This 1.41-acre parcel is landscaped in a park-like setting with large grassy areas and meandering pathways.  It 

contains several historic and educational features about the history of the area.  The east and south boundaries are 

identified by a 2’ high fence made from 6”x6” posts on approximately 8’ centers and connected with a heavy chain.  See 

Aerial photo of Section B above, right. 
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Parker’s Landing Historical Park - A sign, placed in September, 1998,2 is located in the northeast corner of Section B.  It 

measures approximately 4’ h x 13’ w and is mounted on two 8”x 8” wooden posts about 8’ in height.  

 

Dedication monument - A dedication monument is located immediately west of the Parker’s Landing sign at the 

northeast corner of Section B.  The monument consists of a 25-ton basaltic rock, about 8’ h x 10’ w, on which two 

plaques are mounted.  The upper 16”x 22” plaque commemorates the 1976 listing of the Parkersville Site as a National 

Historic Place, and the lower 24”x 36” plaque identifies the park as a 3.88 acre portion of the David C. Parker land claim.  

The monument was dedicated on June 1, 1986.3  See photo below left. 

Behind the dedication monument is an approximate 20’ x 20’ landscaped area with native plants and a pondless 

waterfall.  The waterfall has two tiers.  The top fall is about a 2’ drop;  the second tier drops about 4’ and spills into a 

12’x12’ area covered with river rock varied in sizes of approximately 3” to 5”.  The area is surrounded with native 

plantings.  The edge is lined with four rows of 8”x12” bricks in a running bond pattern.  Many of the bricks are engraved 

with names.  See photo below, right. 

   

Chinook Plaza - West of the dedication monument and plaques, in the northwest portion of Section B is an area 

approximately 30’ x 80’ known as Chinook Plaza. The area commemorates the pre-contact cultures of the site.  The 

Chinook Plaza was formally dedicated on September 12, 2009 and contains the following features. 

At the northeast entrance is a leaf-shaped garden.  It is approximately 14’ long and 8’ across at the center. This planting 

bed includes a 24” x 36” interpretive panel, “Columbia River Art and Plants Used By Chinookan Tribes.” The panel 

explains the stone sculpture and discusses the significance of the plants in the gardens to the native culture. 
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The Guardian Sculpture near the north entrance to Chinook Plaza is a welcoming figure of traditional Chinookan design 

of polished basalt topped with a granite figure of Coyote to represent guardianship of the park.  The sculpture is 7.5‘ h x 

30” w x 24” d.  Four concentric circles are etched into the concrete radiating out from the sculpture.  On the outer edges 

of the concentric circles are 5 polished seating stones approximately 18” h x 16” in diameter.  See photo above. 

Behind the Guardian Sculpture and directly south is a 12’ x 20’ oval planting bed.  It contains a 24” x 36” interpretive 

panel, “Archaeological Evidence of Ancestral Chinookan Indian Sites in the Vicinity of Camas and Washougal.”  The bed 

contains native plants and a basalt rock lying horizontally approximately 5’ w x 16” h and 18” d.  See photo above.  Also, 

behind (south of) the Guardian Sculpture is a  6’-wide stamped red concrete pathway leading approximately 100’ south 

to the Van Vleet Plaza.  The pathway and plaza may be seen in the aerial photo of section B. 

West of the Guardian Sculpture is a triangular planting bed tapering to the west.  It is known as the Chinook Tavi garden 

and is approximately 25’ x 40’ x 45’.  Within the garden is a stone pillar 4 ½‘ h x 2’ w x 2’ d that honors the Chinook 

leaders (Tavi) and people of the Lower Columbia region and is inscribed with names of 25 Chinookan leaders.  To the 

right (north) of the pillar is a 24”x 36” interpretive panel entitled “The Local Chinook Royal Family” which describes the 

local tribe of Washougalles of the 1800s.  The garden is planted in native plants.  See photo below. 

 

Directly west of the Chinook Tavi garden is another entrance to the park from the Section A parking lot.  Covering this 

entrance is a small walk-through rose arbor which serves as the north park entrance.  It is 8.5’ h x 7’w x 4’d.  It is covered 

with lattice panels on the sides and top.  Roses are planted on each side.  The entrance rose arbor is shown in the photo 

below, left. 

A 200-foot path of red cement stamped in a brick pattern leads south from this entrance to the north side of the large 

rose arbor in the center of Section B.4    This path intersects with another path from the silo base.  

Informational kiosk - A wooden kiosk with eight interpretive panels is located in the north center portion of section B, a 

few steps from the north entrance.  Pathways 6’ wide of stamped concrete bordered by 4”x 12” bricks laid end for end 

lead from the Chinook Plaza, west toward the kiosk.  The kiosk is 14’ x 20’ and has a metal roof to protect the panels.  
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The east and west end of the kiosk have 5’x 8’ entrances.  The outside is sheathed with lattice; there are two 3’x3’ 

windows on each of the north and south sides.  Eight interpretive panels, four on each side, are mounted inside on a 

center wall 11’ h and 12’ w.  Each panel is 24” x 48” and is constructed of porcelain-covered metal.5  The viewing area is 

lit by four florescent lights above the panels.  The floor is poured concrete with a brick pattern inlay around the panels.  

The kiosk was dedicated in 1997. 

The photo below, left, shows the entrance rose arbor framing the Van Vleet rose arbor in the distance and the exterior 

of the kiosk.  The photo below, right, shows the interior of the kiosk. 

       

The panels in the kiosk depict the following: 

1. The WaSucally.  This panel discusses the native peoples who occupied the area and their lifestyles. 

2. Lewis and Clark Follow Broughton.  This panel covers the 1792 visit by British Lieutenant William Broughton (the 

first English-speaking explorer to visit the area) as well as Lewis and Clark’s 1805 and 1806 visits and 

encampments in the area. 

3. Fur Traders at Washougally Camp.  This panel discusses the Hudson Bay Company traders, trappers, and 

cartographers, who referred to the area as Washougally Camp. 

4. An Open Door to the North. The George Bush and Michael Simmons party is discussed on this panel.  Bush was 

the first person of African-American descent in Washington State. The party wintered at or near Parker’s 

Landing in 1844/1845 before moving on to the Puget Sound area. In the spring of 1845, Mrs. Simmons gave birth 

to the first child of an American settler north of the Columbia River.   

5. Parker’s Landing Becomes a Town.  This panel tells about the David C. Parker family’s 1845 land claim, the 

establishment of a ferry service and landing, and the townsite of Parkersville. It also covers the later acquisition 

by Lewis Van Vleet of the portion of the Parker DLC, which includes the Historic Park. 

6. Washougal Challenges Parkersville.  The 1880s movement of businesses from Parkersville to the new town of 

Washougal is covered by this panel. 

7. The Van Vleets Tend to the Landing.  This panel covers the life of Lewis Van Vleet’s daughter,  Dr. Louisa Wright, 

and her son Cecil (Spicer) Van Vleet and their ownership of the property from the early 1900s until 1968. 

8. Parkersville Historic Site Preserve.  This panel discusses the establishment of the site as a historic place and park. 

Silo Plaza - Exiting from the west side of the Kiosk,  a 3’ w path edged with 4”x 8” bricks leads southwest about 30’ to 

two steps up to the Silo Plaza. The circular silo base, 10’ in diameter, is located in the northwest corner of section B.  The 

center is planted in native plants. The silo base is concrete topped with 4”x 8” bricks laid on edge.  In the center of the 

silo base is a rock about 10” h x 16” w x 18” d, with a plaque indicating that on-going care of the landscaping is provided 
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by the Soroptimist Club.  The area around the silo is paved with 7”x 9” pavers.  On the north side of the silo plaza is a 6’ 

w x 32” h bench and memorial rock honoring Gertrude Goggins (1910-1995), the 1993 Camas Washougal citizen of the 

year.  See the following photo of the silo base. 

 

An undated aerial photo P16227 (post-1938) from Two Rivers Heritage Museum shows a large barn/outbuilding directly 

north of this silo located on the west property line.  The building appears to have been approximately 20’ x 40’. 

A 6’-wide red concrete pathway stamped with a brick pattern exits the silo plaza to the east and leads to the 

approximate midpoint of the pathway that runs from the north entrance to the Van Vleet rose arbor. 

Walnut tree - A large English walnut tree is found in the north central portion of Section B.  Mary Van Vleet said in 1978 

that the walnut tree was then over 100 years old.6  In the undated aerial photo P16227 (post-1938) from Two Rivers 

Heritage Museum, the walnut tree is located northwest of the Van Vleet house.  

Rose arbor – The 23’ x 14’ x 10’ h rose arbor is found to the west of the Van Vleet Plaza in approximately the same 

location as one that is believed to have been constructed by the Van Vleets in the early 1950s.  The concrete work of the 

present arbor was completed and roses planted in 1991.  Lattice was placed at a later date as the roses grew on the 

outside walls. The east and west end of the arbor has 5’ x 8’ openings.  The north and south side of the arbor each has 

an 8’ x 8’ center opening and two windows measuring 4’ x 4.5’, one on each side of the openings.  The arbor is 

constructed of 6” x 6” wood columns.  The top beams are 6” x 8” running east and west.  They support 2” x 6” rafters 

running north and south in an open-frame design. 

The floor under the arbor is concrete with a brick inlay.  In the center of the floor is a 14” round plaque commemorating 

the Washington Centennial Parkersville 1845 Historic & Archeological Site Centennial Project. 

Outside the arbor are four garden beds wrapping at each corner.  They are outlined in 4” x 8” brick laid in a soldier- 

course pattern with rounded corners.  Climbing roses are planted in each bed.  Below is a photo of the arbor taken from 

the northeast. 
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A 75’ x 6’ pathway of gray concrete stamped with a brick pattern leads from the rose arbor to an intersection with the 

pathway that connects the Van Vleet Plaza to the south entrance of Section B. 

Apple trees - Located in the southern portion of Section B are five remaining fruit trees, approximately 100 years old, 

planted 20’ apart in a grid-like orchard grove.  Some of the original 20 trees from this orchard were removed after the 

Van Vleet home burned in 1978.7   

Van Vleet Historical Plaza - This location is where the Dr. Louisa Wright/Cecil Van Vleet home stood prior to 1978, when 

it was burned by an arsonist.  After the fire, the remnants of the home were demolished along with an adjacent dairy 

building.8  The area was graded but remained unimproved until the plaza was completed. The Van Vleet Historical Plaza 

is an area of about 30’ x 32’ at the eastern edge of Section B.   

At the north end of the plaza is a stone pillar 3’ x 3’ x 6’ h with 2 plaques.  One, 14” X 26,” commemorates the history of 

the property and contains a legend explaining the abbreviations on the plaza’s pavers.  The other plaque, 14” X 20,” 

contains the dedication date of June 15, 2002 and lists major contributors. 

The area is paved with concrete and bricks.  The bricks bear the names of East Clark County pioneers and modern 

families and businesses.  Surrounding the plaza are ten 32”x 32”x 44”h stone pillars.  At the eastern edge of the plaza six 

of the stone pillars support steel posts and are connected by a low concrete wall.  On top of the steel posts are 4” x 12” 

wood beams running north to south.  In the center are five 4” x 8” x 10’ pergola rafters running east to west.  On each 

side of these rafters is an additional 4”x 8” x 8.5‘ rafter.  The remaining 14 rafters, 7 on each side, are 4” x 8” 7’.  Under  

the center of the pergola is a raised stage approximate 6’ x 11’ x 8” h. See the following photo. 

 

A 75’ X 6’ pathway of gray concrete with brick stamping leads about 175’ south from the plaza to the south entrance of 

Section B.  At about the midpoint, it is met by the pathway from the rose arbor. 

Stepping stones - Stepping stones that had been part of a pathway from the Wright/Van Vleet home to the river bank 

were salvaged after the house burned.  A total of sixteen stones were placed at the entrance to the rose arbor in 1991.9  
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The stones caused difficulty in maintaining and mowing around the arbor.  It was planned to relocate them to a walkway 

between the Van Vleet Plaza and Section C.  The stones were moved to the home of Curtis Hughy, now deceased. 

South entrance - At the southeast corner of Section B, an entrance is marked by a small rose arbor of the same size and 

design as at the north entrance.  The south end of Section B is bordered by a row of posts with chains similar in size and 

design to that of the east boundary.  South of this barrier is a fire lane that separates Sections B and C. 

Section C  is a 1.55-acre grassy waterfront recreational area measuring about 150’ x 450’.  The area was filled in the late 

1960s and 1970s to extend the usable land into the river.  It is surrounded by a fire lane and houses two military 

memorials, a viewing deck, a few shade trees, pathways, and benches/tables.  Parker’s dock/wharf was located at the 

southwest corner of this section and for many years a navigation light was located near its center.  A significant slope 

exists at the south boundary of this section, ending at the south leg of the fire lane.  South of that lane is the Columbia 

River.  See aerial photo from Clark County GIS below. 

 

A smooth concrete 6’ by 750’ path loops around the section.  Six concrete benches, 6’ w and 32” h and three concrete 

picnic tables can be accessed via the path. The area is separated from the slopes and the fire lane by a post and chain 

fence similar in design to those at the east and south ends of Section B.  A dozen trees of varying sizes can be found 

along the perimeter, but the area is largely open, allowing views of the river and marina. 

War and military memorials - Located in the southwest corner of Section C is a Camas Washougal Veterans War 

Memorial, which was dedicated on November 11, 2004.  A granite memorial stone measuring 48” w by 52” h and 12” at 

its base is mounted on a concrete slab.  A plaque dedicating the memorial to those Camas Washougal service members 

who were lost in the two world wars, Korea, Viet Nam, and Iraq is mounted on the base.   A concrete bench at the west 

end measures 14” x 56” x 18” h, and two benches measuring 14” x 35” x 18” h are found on the east.  See below left. 
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About 30’ east of the war memorial is a “Silver Rose Memorial,” placed in memory of those who served in the Viet Nam 

War and later died as a result of contact with Agent Orange dioxins.    This granite slab is 24” x 18” w and tapers in 

thickness from a maximum of about 8” at its base.  It is mounted on a tiered concrete slab just south of the pathway and 

is pictured above, right. 

Viewing platform - A viewing platform is found at the southeast corner of Section C.  This trapezoidal deck is 

constructed of wood and composite materials measuring 32’ on its long (east) side, 25’ on its west side, and 12’ in 

depth.  The deck provides an excellent view of the Columbia, Mt. Hood, the marina, and the public boat launch ramps.  

See photo below. 

 

River light location - A river navigation light was located at Parker’s Landing for many years in Section C before the area 

was filled.  In 1986, Olger Jemtegaard, who tended the light in the 1920s, recalled, “It stood on a platform at the edge of 

the river bank and was reached by at least two or maybe more wooden steps up to the platform.”10    See 1937 map  

below. 
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Brown/Bruan Hotel and Saloon – Located in the center of Section C on Lots 5 & 6 of Block 14 of Parkersville was the 

Brown Hotel of the late 1870s.  On Block 13, located directly north of Section C and east of the Van Vleet Plaza, was 

Catalpha Grove, also owned by the Browns.  See photo below. 

Original Parker’s Landing Dock/Wharf Location - The dock that David Parker constructed for landing of watercraft such 

as emigrant rafts, canoes, and steamboats is shown on old maps to be at the southwest corner of what is now Section C 

of the park.  See red arrow in photo below. 
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7. Statement of Significance 
Applicable Clark County Heritage Register Criteria  
 

 

 
X 

 
1 

 
It is associated with events that have 

 
 

made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 
of national, state, or local history. 

 
 
2 

 
It embodies the distinctive architectural  

 

 

characteristics of a type, period, style, or method of 
design or construction, or represents a significant 
and distinguishable entity whose components may 
lack individual distinction. 
 

 
3 

 
It is an outstanding work of a designer, builder, or  

 
 

Architect who has made a substantial contribution to 
their field. 

 
 
4 

 
It exemplifies or reflects special elements of the  

  county’s history. 

X 5 It is associated with the lives of persons significant in  
 

 
national, state, or local history 

 
X 

 
6 

It has yielded or may be likely to yield important 

 
 

Archaeological information related to history or 
prehistory. 

  
7 

 
It is an historic building or cultural resource removed 

 
 

from its original location but which is signifcant for 
architectural value, or association with an historic 
person or event, or prehistory. 

  
8 

 
It is a birthplace of grave of a prehistoric or historical 

 
 

Figure of outstanding importance and is the o nly 
surviving structure or site associated with that 
person. 

  
9 

 
It is a cemetary or burial site which derives its  

 
 

primary signifcance from age, from distinctive design 
features, or from association with historic events, or 
cultural patterns. 

  
10 

 
It is a reconstructed building that has been executed 

 
 

in a historically accurate manner on the original site. 

 
 
11 

 
It is a creative and unique example of folk 
architecture  

  and design created by persons not formally trained in 
the architectural or design professions, and which 
does not fit into formal architectural or historical 
categories. 
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Areas of Significance 
(Enter categories from instructions) 
Prehistoric 

Historic - Aboriginal 

Exploration/settlement 

Transportation/Commerce 

 
 
Period of Significance 
2500 to 3000 years ago (natives) to 1978 

(property final sale) 

 

 

 
Significant Dates 
2500 to 3000 years ago (Natives), 1792 

(Broughton) and 1806 (Lewis & Clark) to 1844 

(David C. Parker settlement), 1850 (Donation 

Land Claim), 1854 (Platting of Parkersville), 

1858 (death of David C. Parker), 1977 (death 

of Cecil Van Vleet) 

 

 
 
Significant Person 
(Complete if Criterion 5 is marked above) 
Broughton, Lewis & Clark, George Bush & 

Michael T. Simmons, David C. Parker, Lewis 

Van Vleet , Dr. Louisa Wright 

Cultural Affiliation 
Native American (Chinook) 

Euro-American 

 

Architect/Builder 
 

 

 

Narrative Statement of Significance  
(Explain the significance of the property.)  
 
Summary Paragraph 
As an historic site, the Parkersville area has figured prominently in the state’s history from the time before European 
contact to the development of the Southeast Clark County area. It was a popular area for the Chinook-speaking Native 
Americans. In 1792, Explorer William Broughton stood nearby and claimed everything he saw for Great Britain. A few 
years later, Lewis and Clark camped in the area, and in 1845 the birth of the first child of permanent American settlers 
took place there. David Parker and his family, the first American settlers in Washington State, landed there as squatters 
and then started a community. Parker’s dock aided the steamboat traffic that played an important part in the development 
of the lower Columbia. Several early Parkersville business owners went on to play important roles in the development of 
the City of Washougal. The first woman doctor in the Camas-Washougal area owned land at the site. The 3.88-acre 
Parker’s Landing Historical Park was added to the National Register of Historic Places on August 11, 1976. 
 
Pre-contact 
Native peoples occupied the region for many centuries before European contact. It is estimated that in the 1700s, 50,000 
Chinook-speaking natives inhabited the Columbia River region between The Dalles and the Pacific. Disease had lowered 
this number to about 15,000 by the time of Lewis and Clark. These peaceful people travelled and traded more than those 
of the plains, using canoes as their main method of transportation. Multiple families lived in large, sturdy cedar houses 
that were located near water and food sources. Fishing was a main occupation of the Chinook speaking peoples. They 
used woven nets weighted by sinkers of river rock with holes bored through them. Tools were fashioned from wood, 
stone, and obsidian.11 
 
Native American artifacts have been found in the Camas-Washougal area and on or nearby the Parker’s Landing 
Historical Park. To the southwest of the site, excavation for homes in 1938-1939 brought up mortars, pestles, hammer 
stones, fishing net weights, and a stone effigy. In 1969, the Oregon Archaeological Society collected some stone and shell 
Indian beads, net sinkers, scrapers, drills, and a clay pipe at the south end of Section B. Also, on Lady Island, a short 
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distance downstream, the Oregon Archaeological Society uncovered five native sites in 1974.12  In the early 1920s, many 
arrow heads were found on the beach at the property during low-water periods.13 
 
Early Explorers and Fur Traders 
The first documented Europeans to visit the area were British explorers led by Lt. William Broughton, under the command 
of Capt. George Vancouver. For seven days, Broughton and a company of men in two small boats travelled up the 
Columbia from present day Astoria to a point about two miles upstream from today’s Washougal, where he claimed the 
entire area for Great Britain on October 30, 1792.  Broughton noted contact with Native Americans near Sauvie Island and 
at Lady Island, downstream from Parker’s Landing, and was guided for a time by a friendly Indian leader.14 
 
A few years later, the area was explored by Lewis and Clark. On their 1805 downstream journey, they noted large 
numbers of water fowl and sea otters near the mouth of the present day Washougal River. In the spring of 1806, they 
halted their upstream journey above the mouth of the Washougal, where they observed many seals. They met Native 
families who told of them of a great scarcity of food upstream. This led the party to stay at Washougal for five days to hunt 
enough food to get them past the cascades and beyond. The site of the encampment is believed to have been 
somewhere between the present woolen mill and the port’s marina.15  
 
Alexander Ross, one of three men of the Astor Fur Trading Company who travelled upstream in 1811, camped the night 
at a place upstream from Lady Island, referring to it in his written account as “Washough-ally Camp.”  French-Canadian 
fur trappers and voyageurs made tea from peppermint growing in the prairie that extended about 3 miles below the 
present city of Washougal. They referred to the area as “Tea Prairie.”16 
 
Settlers Bush, Simmons, and Ough Arrive 
Christopher Columbus Simmons (1845-1931) is recognized as being the first child born to American pioneers in the state 
of Washington. His parents, Michael and Elizabeth Simmons, were members of a party of emigrants that included George 
Bush. They arrived at The Dalles in 1844 and wintered in the Washougal area, at or near Parker’s Landing.  Christopher 
was born in April 1845.  Because Bush was half African-American, half European-American and not welcome in Oregon 
Country because of discriminatory laws, the party moved on to the Puget Sound area shortly after Christopher’s birth.17  
  
Richard Ough (also known as Howe) was a British sailor who arrived at Ft. Vancouver in 1838 and worked under John 
Mcloughlin. Ough married White Wing, the daughter of a native leader who lived in the Washougal area.  White Wing 
became known as Betsy Ough, and the couple lived in several places before settling on a large parcel that they later filed 
for and for which they received title.18 The parcel abuts the eastern boundary of the David C. Parker claim.  Later, the 
Oughs sold a parcel of their land to Joseph Durgan/Durgin, who founded the town of Washougal. 
 
David C Parker 
David C. Parker and his family were the first permanent American settlers in Clark County.  He was born in Kentucky in 
1804 and married Ann Graham in 1838. The Parkers and their two small children arrived via a wagon train at The Dalles, 
Oregon in 1844. Their son George was born in the Oregon Country in 1844. The family rafted from The Dalles to the land 
where Parker squatted just downstream (west) of today's Washougal.19 
 
The Parkers were living on what would become their land claim by January 1845.20  Parker built a cabin on the northern 
bank of the Columbia. In the spring of 1845 he cleared a quarter of an acre and planted it with potato seeds from the 
Hudson’s Bay Company store at Fort Vancouver.21 Their fourth child, Eliza, was born in what would become Washington 
Territory in 1846.22 David Parker staked a claim and filed a Notification of Settlement for the 582 acres he occupied.  He 
made the improvements required by law but did not file for the patent to grant him title to the land. This would be done by 
his heirs in 1871. 
 
 “On June 10, 1854, Parker was granted a license to establish a ferry from the head of Lady Island to above the mouth of 
the Washougal River.”23  “Parker was an industrious man, and he soon built a small dock on the Columbia River to 
receive supplies and to accommodate the river boats that came upstream. The site of the dock initially became known as 
Parker’s Ferry, and this later evolved into Parker’s Landing, as the site is known today.”24 Also in 1854, Parker platted the 
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town of Parkersville. The original plat has not been found, but deed records show he sold lots in “Parkersville” in February, 
1856 to John J. Lowell and John B. Parker (David’s son). 
 
Two early maps show development on the Parkers’ claim.  An 1855 U.S. military map prepared by Lt. George Derby 
shows a stockade and labels the site as “Parker’s Ferry.”  A copy of Derby’s map can be found at the Two Rivers Heritage 
Museum (Catalog A 1995.10.1).  The following map is from the 1856 cadastral survey, conducted by Justin Chenoeth, 
under contract to James Tilton, surveyor general of the United States.  Chenowith’s field notes describe the Parker house 
and cultivated, fenced field.25  The rectangle with diagonal lines is the area David C. Parker cultivated. 
 

 
David C. Parker died on February 27, 1858.  “David Parker is buried somewhere on his homestead on a hill and in site of 
the river.”26  After his death, Lewis Van Vleet was assigned as administrator of his estate. Van Vleet auctioned off the east 
half of the Parker Donation Land Claim.  According to the probate settlement filed on December 13, 1859, 210 acres were 
sold at auction to Charles C. Stiles and in the town of Parkersville eight blocks (70 lots) were auctioned to various 
investors.  Also, the buyers of lots sold by David C. Parker in 1856 were acknowledged as legal owners.  David C. 
Parker’s widow, Ann, his daughter Eliza Wiley and her husband Jackson Wiley remained on the west half of the claim. 
 
On February 2, 1861 according to the Clark County deed records, Lewis Van Vleet purchased the 210 acres from Charles 
C. Stiles for $1,166. 
 
Interestingly, the Patent for the Donation Land Claim for the David C. Parker was not issued until August 27, 1871 to his 
widow and heirs.  Records cannot be found to explain why the patent was issued so long after his death and after the 
probate settlement. There were, however, some challenges regarding property titles in the late 1870s. 
 
Lewis Van Vleet 
Lewis Van Vleet administered the Estate of David C. Parker, later purchased a portion of the claim, and then platted the 
addition to Parkersville, allowing for more growth at the town site. 
 
Lewis Van Vleet was born in Seneca County, New York October 21, 1826.  He crossed the plains in 1853 and took up a 
homestead in Fern Prairie.  He married Elizabeth A. Coffee in 1856.  They had six children: Louisa, Edith, Stella, Lewis, 
Jr., and Felix, and two others, Lois and Harriet, who died in early childhood.  Van Vleet served multiple terms in the 
territorial legislature representing Clark and Cowlitz Counties between 1856 and 1871. In 1856, he was appointed United 
States deputy surveyor and held that position for nearly 40 years.  Also, he worked as a land appraiser for the Northern 
Pacific Railway, was a mason, and a veteran of the Indian Wars.27   
 
On April 18, 1878, Lewis Van Vleet filed a Parkersville plat showing seven new blocks to the west of Parker’s original 
eight blocks. In 1928, engineer Park Ratten drew an additional plat by tracing Van Vleet’s 1878 map and adding Parker’s 
original 8 blocks with details found in “unofficial plats” and “on the ground” items, such as existing fences and recognized 
streets.  Following is Ratten’s 1928 map from Clark County GIS.  
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Parkersville 
Parkersville started slowly.  The earliest newspaper mention of a business is in 1858 when “Michael Wintler and Isaac 
Kaufman opened a store at Parker’s Landing.”28 
 
The dock at Parker’s Landing would become a very important part of the community since roads to the growing area were 
poor.  An editorial in The Vancouver Independent on June 16, 1877 stated, “We have, at present, two steamboats running 
opposition – the Gazelle and Calliope. They make two trips per week – Tuesdays and Wednesdays. Those long-wished-
for gentlemen Messrs. Carpenter & Co., of Portland, have at length arrived. They have put up a neat store house, in which 
they opened a new stock of goods on Monday, June 4th inst. They will sell goods and buy country produce.”29 
 
As the town of Parkersville grew, entrepreneurs continued to invest in the town.  Investors such as L.D. and Emma Brown 
of Portland, Oregon purchased Block 13 (directly east of the current Van Vleet Plaza) and lots 5 and 6 in Block 14 (in the 
center of Section C, the fill area) on April 19, 1878.30 They built a hotel and saloon and created “Catalpha Grove.” It was a 
destination for many picnics and events. The property was managed by Fritz Braun and his wife Amelia. The 1880 federal 
census listed them as a “tavern keeper” and “bartender.” They immigrated from Germany in 1875, according to the 1910 
federal census. The hotel burned down in October, 1879, and the plan was to rebuild.31 “In 1880, Fritz Braun began 
constructing a hotel in Parkersville…. It was reported that the hotel was nearly completed when Braun noticed the 
success of the Washougal site and decided business would be better there. He tore down what he had built and 
reconstructed the hotel in Washougal.”  According to Cecil Van Vleet, “the reason Braun left Parkersville was an argument 
over property boundaries with [Cecil’s grandfather] Lewis Van Vleet.”32  Fritz Braun remained in Washougal until his death 
in 1917 at age 91.  He was a businessman and justice of the peace. 
 
Parkersville was a destination for many social events. Steamboats transported guests from Portland and Vancouver. In 
May, 1879 an advertisement for the “Grand Excursion & Picnic to Catalpha Grove situated at Parker’s Landing on board 
the beautiful steamer City of Quincy.”  Entertainment included an aerial trapeze performance, Fat Men’s Race, 
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Wheelbarrow Race, Sack Race, and Greased Pig race with prizes.  It also boasted a large dance floor, croquet grounds, 
and swings worked by horse power, all while a “fine Brass Band” played.33 
 
“Parkersville seems to bear the evidences of a lively little town.  I noticed that the shelves of the stores were well filled, 
and the merchants are busy waiting on customers.  It has a fine location, and when the title to the site is definitely settled, 
its way will be cleared for rapid growth,” according to The Vancouver Independent on July 10, 1879..34  The details of the 
title issues and their resolution are unclear. Several parties were mentioned in a lawsuit in the fall of 1879 between the 
Wileys (David C. Parker’s daughter and son-in-law) and Van Vleet, Durgan, Jones, Braun, Wickworth, and Dayman. In 
March, 1880 an article in The Vancouver Independent stated, “The dispute over land titles at Parker’s Landing has been 
compromised, and the cloud on tiles will be cleared up.”35 
 
A month later, on April 15, 1880, the Vancouver Independent reported,  
 

New Town – A number of farmers and others from Parker’s Landing were in Vancouver on Tuesday, perfecting 
arrangements to remove the town of Washougal to a new location, one and a half miles above Parker’s Landing, 
where a new village will be started immediately. About $2,000 has been subscribed to build a wharf. The difficulty 
about land titles at the old landing is the cause of this new movement, so we understand. There naturally ought to be 
built up a nice little trading point in the vicinity of the Washougal, and will be not far in the future.  

 
The town of Washougal had been founded by J. E. C. Durgan on land he had purchased from the Ough DLC. 
 
Parkersville continued to thrive for at least a while longer. The Vancouver Independent reported on July 8, 1880 that 
“More than 1,000 people were present at Catalpha Grove at the celebration on Monday, and the festivities did not close 
until a very late hour.”36  Soon after, mentions of Parkersville in The Vancouver Independent and The Oregonian ceased.  
 
Navigation aids 
Navigation aids at Parker’s Landing date back to the late 1870s.  On January 23, 1879, a newspaper story reported that 
“O.S.N. Co.’s buoy which was placed on a bar near Parker’s Landing was brought down by the ice, and now lies beyond 
the island. It will be taken up and put in its proper place.”37   
 
A river navigation light existed at Parker’s Landing for many years. On November 11, 1902, The Oregonian published a 
Notice to Mariners:  
 

Changes in Aids to Navigation on the Pacific Coast.  Notice is given by the Lighthouse Board of the following changes  
in the aids to navigation on the Pacific Coast:  Parker Landing post light – On November 15, 1902, a fixed white lantern 
light, on a white stake 10 feet above the water, will be established on the northerly bank of the Columbia River at 
Parker Landing, Washington, as a guide in the narrow and rocky channel. 

 
The original light was a large kerosene burner and had a red lens.  In the first half of the 1920s, it was mounted near the 
river bank on a wood platform reached by several stairs.  Daily maintenance by the resident at the property involved 
climbing the stairs, filling the lamp with fuel, polishing the lens, and then lighting it.38 The light was eventually updated to 
electricity sometime before 1931.39 The light was removed sometime after 1961. 
 
Dr. Louisa Wright 
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Doctor Louisa Van Vleet Wright was the first woman doctor in the Camas/Washougal area 40 and one 
of the early female doctors in Washington State to hold both a medical degree and a license to 
practice. She was the daughter of Lewis and Elizabeth Van Vleet, born on their Fern Prairie homestead 
in 1862. She took an interest in medicine and taught school in Grass Valley (southwest of Lacamas 
Lake) to earn money for medical school. She attended the University of Oregon Medical College and 
the University of Michigan, where she earned her medical degree in 1885, at just 23 years of age.41  
 
Louisa practiced in Missoula for a year and then in Portland.42 She married William Spicer, a druggist; 
they were living in Tacoma in 1892.43 They had three children, Cecil, Lewis and Edith, but the marriage 
didn’t last.  Louisa moved with the children to Camas, bought property in 1897, and was listed there in 

the 1900 census.44   
 
Louisa was remarried in 1901 to James W. Wright of Camas, a widowed livery stable keeper with 5 children. Wright’s 
mother was Emily Durgan, daughter of Washougal pioneers.45 Louisa continued with her medical practice and served on 
the Camas school board for 12 years.  She reluctantly ran for mayor of Camas in 1912, did not campaign, and lost by a 
single vote.46 
 
Louisa purchased Parkersville area property from her parents.47 In July 1890, Louisa purchased the 10 acres her son 
Cecil would eventually own and in February 1904 she purchased an additional 35 acres which included part of the town of 
Parkersville. Then, about 1910, as Louisa was moving toward retirement, she had a house moved about 300 feet west 
and attached to the home once belonging to Ann Parker.48 The moved house, believed to have been that of James 
Wright’s family, had been built in 1878.49 This home was the one that stood in Section B of the Parker’s Landing Historical 
Park until 1978. The Wrights retired in the home and Louisa all but gave up the practice of medicine in favor of the peace 
and quiet of the mostly deserted Parkersville. 
 
On the morning of May 30, 1913, Louisa and James Wright, along with one of his daughters, were preparing to decorate 
the Fern Prairie graves of her parents. They planned to use a horse and buggy for the trip rather than the 1911 Buick they 
owned, and while assisting in harnessing the horse, Louisa was kicked in the chin and her neck was broken.  She died 
before a doctor from nearby Camas could arrive.  Louisa’s heirs were her husband James and the three children from her 
marriage to Spicer--Cecil, Lewis, and Edith.50  Her funeral was held at the Parker’s Landing home and attended by many, 
some arriving by boat, including Indians in canoes.51 
 
Cecil Van Vleet 
The Parker’s Landing property passed to Cecil Spicer Van Vleet, who held it until selling to the Port of Camas-Washougal.  
He was born Cecil Spicer on February 1, 1890, son of Dr. Louisa and William Spicer.  Most of Cecil’s childhood was spent 
in the Camas area, where he attended Camas High School.52 Because Camas was then only a two-year school, he 
boarded in Portland53 and graduated from Lincoln High.  After high school, Cecil moved Seattle and lived with his 
grandparents, Lewis and Elizabeth Van Vleet. He attended the University of Washington, graduated with a master’s 
degree in chemistry, and began a teaching career. Feeling more connected to his mother’s side of his family, he legally 
changed his last name to Van Vleet in June of 1917.54 He married a college sweetheart, Elsie Moore, in October, 1917.55  
He taught at schools in Oregon, Washington, and California, including five years in the 1920s at Vancouver High, where 
he taught chemistry and led the band.56 Elsie also was a teacher and worked in Washougal and Vancouver schools.57 
 
Louisa Wright’s property was left to her husband James and her three children.58 Afterward, they divided the real estate in 
a series of recorded transfers. Cecil became the owner of the 10 acres at Parkersville but did not live there continuously.  
From 1917 to 1920 the property was leased59 to Joseph Ernst, a farmer.60 
 
Cecil and Elsie lived at Parker’s Landing during the 1920s.  During that time, Cecil tore down the last deserted 
Parkersville building because it was dangerous.61 The couple is said to have been friendly and outgoing.  Cecil was 
teaching school in Vancouver, commuting in a Model T Ford.  Elsie taught English, coached girls’ basketball, and directed 
plays in Washougal, walking to work whenever weather permitted and otherwise driving an Overland. In the 1930s and 
1940s, Cecil rented the property to Louis and Delia Chevron, who established a dairy there. They sold milk from a dairy in 
a “little green milk house.”  The animals and equipment were sold in 1942; the Chevrons added a bathroom and kitchen to 
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the milk house and moved into it, leaving the main house to their adult children.62  The old house burned in 1978, the work 
of an arsonist; the milkhouse was bulldozed along with the remnants of the burned home. 
 
Elsie Van Vleet died in Multnomah County on Jan 2, 1950 and was buried near her parents at Lakeview Cemetery, 
Seattle.63 The couple had no children.  Cecil may have returned to Parker’s landing after her death or not until he re-
married in 1952. 
 
In Portland, while playing bridge, Cecil met Mary Roberts of Multnomah County. They were married in Clark County on 
September 8, 1952.64 Cecil and Mary lived at Parker’s Landing after their marriage and stayed until he died. They 
remodeled the old house, built a rose arbor nearby, and hosted parties and a bridge club in the former milk house for 
many years.  
 
Parker’s Landing Transition from Van Vleets to Port and Development of the Historical Park 
Cecil Van Vleet was seriously injured in an auto accident on June 26, 1966.65 Several sources agree that although Cecil 
had expressed a desire to leave the property to the public for a park, the subsequent medical bills necessitated its sale.  
The Van Vleets sold their land to the port with the stipulation that they could remain there as long as Cecil lived.66 He 
passed away on December 4, 1977,67 and Mary moved to Vancouver on March 1, 1978, leaving the house vacant. She 
died in August of 1979.68  
 
The empty Van Vleet home was destroyed by fire on October 27, 1978.69  A few artifacts were recovered from the rubble 
before remains of the house and nearby block building were demolished and removed by the port.   
 
Citizen participation to preserve the site began in the early 1970s along with other projects and activities designed to save 
the remnants of pioneer life and to advance the Camas-Washougal sense of community. The 3.88-acre site was 
submitted to the Washington State Advisory Council on Historic Preservation and subsequently nominated and approved 
by the National Register of Historic Places on August 11, 1976.70   
 
In 1978, sparked by a discussion at an American Association of University Women (AAUW) meeting, citizens began to 
work to create a historical commemorative park at the former Van Vleet property. They formed the Camas-Washougal 
Historical Society and, over time, the group was able to gather the support for a park from the community and the Port of 
Camas Washougal.  This was sometimes a contentious process. In September 1985, the Port Commission recognized 
the historical significance of the property and formed a standing committee to develop a park plan (Port of Camas 
Washougal Position Statement, Sept. 23, 1985). The group was originally known as the Parkersville Site Development 
Committee (PSDC) and later as the Parker’s Landing Park Advisory Committee (PLPAC). The committee developed a 
master plan and then continued to work out details for the elements of the park.  Several people were with the project 
from the 1970s through completion of the most recent additions in the 2000s. These include Roberta Tidland, Rosalee 
MacRae, Bernice Pluchos, and John Bucholz. The site is now designated a park and has been zoned by the City of 
Washougal as Public/Institutional.  
 
8.  Works Cited 
 
(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form.)      

 

Works Cited 
 
1Real Estate Contract. Port of Camas-Washougal and Cecil and Mary Van Vleet. Jan. 

24, 1969. 
2 Bella, Rick. “New Sign Identifies Historic Town Site.” The Oregonian. Sept. 7, 1998, 
 p. B02. 
3 Pluchos, Bernice S. “Historical Address at Dedication of Parker’s Landing.” June 1, 
 1986, PLPAC files. 
4 Parker’s Landing Park Advisory Committee Minutes Aug. 5, 1993. PATHWAYS, PLPAC  



Clark County Heritage Register Nomination Form CLARK COUNTY , WA Page 21 of 28 
   

 files. 
5 ---. Jan. 12, 1995. PLPAC Files. 
6 MacRae, Rosalee. “History of Parker’s Landing.” Memo dated Sept. 11,1988. PLPAC files. 
7  ---. Letter to Councilman Lornie McCullough, City of Washougal. Aug. 6, 1989, p.3. PLPAC 

 files. 
8 ---.  
9 Parker’s Landing Park Advisory Committee Minutes. Aug. 5, 1993. Stepping  Stones, 
 PLPAC files. 
10 Jemtegaard, Olger. “Beacon Light at Parker’s Landing.” June 1, 1986. Oral history, PLPAC 

 files. 
11 Piontek, Mildred G. “Washougal, Washington Gateway to the Columbia Gorge.”Self- 
 published, Camas, WA, 1996, pp. 159-165. 
12 Pluchos, Bernice Senti. “Historical Address at Dedication of Parker’s Landing.” June 
 1, 1986. 
13 MacRae, Rosalee. “History.” 
14 History Cooperative Website. “Before Lewis and Clark, Lt. Broughton’s Exploration of 1792.”  
 historycooperative.org/journal/before-lewis-and-clark-lt-broughtons-river-of-names-the- 
 columbia-river-exploration-of-1792/. Viewed Jan. 17, 2019. 
15 “Lewis and Clark Were Second.” Camas-Washougal Post-Record, bicentennial ed. 1976, p. 7. 
16 Beck, Bob. “Washougal Boasts a Number of Firsts.” The Columbian, Nov. 11, 1988. 
17 Piontek, Mildred G. “Washougal, Washington Gateway to the Columbia Gorge.” Self – 

published, 1996, p.169. For information regarding black exclusion laws in Oregon, see 
https://oregonencyclopedia.org/articles/exclusion_laws/#.XHCgZehKgdV 
18 Betsy Ough Dies.” The Oregonian, July 18, 1911, p. 12. 
19 Cormack, James F, great grandson of DCP, son of John Bates Parker. “Parker-Lady.”  
 Unpublished story, c. 1933. Two Rivers Heritage Museum, Washougal, WA. Reference  
 Library, Parker binder. 
20 Transcript of U. S. Gov’t Land Office Notification No. 320, Aug. 27, 1871. From Parker  
 binder in Research Library of Two Rivers Heritage Museum. Viewed Jan. 11, 2019. 
2i David Parker’s Homestead Preserved.” Camas-Washougal Post-Record, centennial ed. 

Nov. 11, 1988,  p. 5. 
22 1870 US Census. 
23Alley, B.F. and Munro-Fraser, J. P. “Clarke County Washington Territory 1885.” Camas, WA: 

 Post Publishing, 1885, p.80. 
24 “Washoughal Claims Many ‘Firsts.’” Camas-Washougal Post-Record, bicentennial ed. 1976,  
 p. 21. 
25 Field Notes of Land Surveys in Washington, Vol. 4, Roll 14. Washington State Library,  
 Olympia, WA. 
26 Cormack, James F., great grandson of D.C. Parker, son of John B. Parker. “Parker-Lady.”  
 Oral history, unpublished, c. 1933. Two Rivers Heritage Museum, reference library, 

 Parker binder. 
27 “L. Van Vleet Dies.” The Oregonian, Apr. 16, 1910,  p.11. 
28 “Early Washougal History Dates Back to Lewis and Clark.” Camas-Washougal Post-Record, 

centennial ed. Oct., 1980, p. 8. 
29 D.S.C. (D.S. Cameron). Editorial. The Vancouver Independent. June 16, 1877. 
30 Clark County Deed Records. FamilySearch.org. 
31 “To Rebuild.” The Vancouver Independent. Oct. 9, 1879. 
32 “Group Fighting to Preserve History.” Camas-Washougal Post-Record, centennial ed.  Nov. 

 11, 1988, p.7. 

https://oregonencyclopedia.org/articles/exclusion_laws/%23.XHCgZehKgdV


Clark County Heritage Register Nomination Form CLARK COUNTY , WA Page 22 of 28 
 

33 Advertisment. “Grand Excursion & Picnic.” The Oregonian. May 10, 1879, p. 1. 
34 Robb, Robert. “Up the Washougal.” The Vancouver Independent. July 10, 1879. 
35 “The Dispute Over Land Titles.” The Vancouver Independent. Mar. 18, 1880. 
36 “Parker’s Landing Celebration.” The Vancouver Independent.  July 8, 1880. 
37 O.S.N. Co.’s Buoy.” The Vancouver Independent. Jan. 23, 1879. 
38 Jemtegaard, Olger. “Beacon.”  
39 MacRae, Rosalee. “History.” 
40 “Washougal Claims Many ‘Firsts.’” 
41 “Woman Doctor ‘Unusual for Times.’” Camas-Washougal Post-Record, bicentennial ed. 1976,  
 p. 41. 
42 Advertisement. “Louisa Van Vleet, M.D.” The Oregonian, Jan. 19, 1886, p. 3. 
43 Pierce County Census, 1892, via Washington State Digital Archives. Viewed Jan. 11, 2019. 
44 1900 Census via Ancestry.com. 
45 Marriage Return no. 1101, 1901 Spicer to Wright. Washington State files via Ancestry.com. 
46 Gibson, Diane, and Marc Wohosky. “This Week in Clark County History: Dr. Louisa.” The  
 Columbian, Sept. 19, 2002, p. 5. 
47 Van Vleet, L., & Wife to Spicer, L. 1890 Clark County Deed Records and Warrantee Deed no. 

14285, 1904 Clark County Deed Records. 
48 “Group Fighting to Preserve History.”  
49 Moser, Pat. “Van Vleet House Boosters Still Hope to Preserve Site.” The Columbian, “East  
 County News.” Oct. 25, 1978, p. 3. 
50 “Kick Fatal To Woman.”The Oregonian. May 31, 1913, p. 18. 
51 Woman Doctor ‘Unusual for Times’.” 
52 ---. 
53 Polk’s City Directory for Portland, OR 1908, p. 1194. 
54 Order changing name granted by Multnomah County Court June 18, 1917 and later filed with 

 Clark County on Aug. 17, 1920 . See Clark County Book 134, p. 622. 
55 King County Marriage Certificates, 1917 vol A9 no. 58526-59786. 
56 “Woman Doctor ‘Unusual for Times.’”  
57 Polk’s City Directory for Vancouver 1921, p.194. 
58 Will of Louisa V. Wright. Clark County Court, Oct. 5, 1914. 
59 County Auditor Files No. B6519. Spicer to Ernst, Nov. 1, 1917. 
60 US Census for 1920. Joseph Ernst, via Ancestry.com. 
61 Pluchos, Bernice Senti.  
62 MacRae, Rosalee. “Contained in the following two pages are 12 snapshots loaned to me 
 by Delia Chevron.” Undated, PLPAC files. 
63 Find-a-Grave Website. Elsie Van Vleet, Memorial ID 11562385. 
64 Clark County Marriage Certificate D23540, Van Vleet-Roberts. 
65 “Two Injured In Collision.” The Oregonian, June 26, 1966, p. 21. 
66 “Woman Doctor ‘Unusual For Times.’”  
67 Social Security Death Index. Cecil Van Vleet, Washington Digital Archives 
68 MacRae, Rosalee. “Chronology.” c. 1989, PLPAC files. 
69 Moser, Pat. “Reward Offered for Van Vleet Arsonist.” The Columbian, “East County News.” 

 Nov. 1, 1978. 
70 Clark County Community Planning Files. 
https://www.clark.wa.gov/sites/default/files/dept/files/community-
planning/Historic/Nominations/Parkersville%20Site%20Nat%20Reg%20document%20%2076001880.pdf 
 

 

https://www.clark.wa.gov/sites/default/files/dept/files/community-planning/Historic/Nominations/Parkersville%20Site%20Nat%20Reg%20document%20%2076001880.pdf
https://www.clark.wa.gov/sites/default/files/dept/files/community-planning/Historic/Nominations/Parkersville%20Site%20Nat%20Reg%20document%20%2076001880.pdf


Clark County Heritage Register Nomination Form CLARK COUNTY , WA Page 23 of 28 
   

 

 

 

 
 
 

Previous documentation on file (CCHR): Primary location of additional data: 
 Preliminary determination of individual listing  X State Historic Preservation Office 
 has been requested   Other State agency 
 Previously listed in the Clark County Heritage Register X Federal agency 
X Previously determined eligible by the Clark County Heritage  X Local government 
 Register  University 
X Recorded by Clark County Cultural Resources Inventory Survey  Other 
 number 074-A Name of repository: 

  National Register of Historic Sites 

   WA State Historic Places 
  Clark County Community Planning 

9.  Geographical Data                                                               
 
Acreage of Property 2.6 acres (Park) plus .92 acres (Parking) = 3.88  

 
UTM References 
(Place additional UTM References on a continuation sheet.) 
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Verbal Boundary Description  
(Describe the boundaries of the property.)   
 

The location is approximately between these borders: The Columbia River is near its southern border, the City of 

Camas is the western Border, the frontage road directly south of SR-14 is the northern border, and the eastern border 

is the parking area that serves the launch ramp at the port. 

 
 
 
 
 

Boundary Justification  
(Explain why the boundaries were selected.)     
 

The original parcel of 3.88 acres was a portion of the claim purchased by Lewis Van Vleet from the estate of David  C. 
Parker and later was the portion left to Cecil Van Vleet (Spicer) by his mother, Dr. Louisa Van Vleet Wright, daughter 
of Lewis.  Current boundaries are parcels that were adjusted and zoned Institutional & Public by the port in 2015 (see 
Clark County parcel numbers and acres). 
 
 
 
 

 
 
10. Form Prepared By  
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name/title      Dr. Martha Martin, Ginny Frosh, and Rosalee Macrae (sub-committee members)    

organization Parkersville National Historic Site Advisory Comm. date    08/01/2018 

street & number   telephone (360) 835-1070 

city or town   Washougal state WA zip code 98671 

 

 
Additional Documentation 
Submit the following items with the completed form: 
 
Continuation Sheets 
 
Maps 
      A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.  
 
      A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. (see attached) 
 
Photographs 
    See attached 
 Representative photographs of the property. 
 
Additional items 
 

 Original property description 1969 Real Estate contract 
 Boundary line adjustments – rezoning to public/institutional 2010 (Park) 
 Outline of property 
 1856 and 1863 historical maps of the area 

 
 
 
 
Property Owner    

name                 Port of Camas-Washougal 

street & number   24 South A Street telephone (360) 835-2196 

city or town    Washougal         state WA zip code 98671 
 

 

 
4b. CLARK COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

In my opinion, the property  meets /    does not meet the Clark County Heritage Register 
criteria.  (  See continuation sheet.) 

 
 
             
Signature of commenting staff                 Date 
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4c. CLARK COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION / 

DECISION 
 

IN THE OPINION OF THE CLARK COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION, THE 
PROPERTY MEETS  / DOES NOT MEET  THE CLARK COUNTY HERITAGE REGISTER 
CRITERIA.  (  See continuation sheet.) 

 
 
             
CHAIRPERSON, 
Clark County Historic Preservation Commission   Date 
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